
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
Tuesday, 6 February 2018 at 7.30 pm 

Council Chamber, Civic Centre 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions   
 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To receive Councillors’ declarations of interest (if any) in relation to any 

matters on the agenda. 
 

3. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 5) 
 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 28 November 2017. 

 
4. Matters arising   
 
5. Written questions from members of the public   
 
 To receive any questions from members of the public in accordance with 

Council Procedure Rule 10. 
 

6. Written questions from Councillors   
 
 To receive any questions from Councillors in accordance with Council 

Procedure Rule 11. 
 

7. Responses of the Cabinet to Reports of the Scrutiny Committee   
 
 To consider responses (if any) of the Cabinet to reports and 

recommendations from the Committee. 
 

 a) Review of Sheltered Housing (Phase 2) - Final Report   
 

  The Cabinet considered the Committee’s recommendations arising 
from Phase 2 of the Review of Sheltered Housing at its meeting on 
25 January 2017 and 
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
A The proposals as detailed in paragraphs 15 to 31 of the 
report attached as Appendix 1 be adopted. 

 
 

8. Review of Sports in Harlow - Interim Report  (Pages 6 - 11) 
 
9. Review of Universal Credit in Harlow - Agreement of Questions for 

Interviews  (Pages 12 - 15) 
 

Public Document Pack



10. Work Plan  (Page 16) 
 
 To review the Committee’s work plan for the current year. 

 
11. References from Other Committees   
 
 None. 

 
12. Matters of Urgent Business   
 
 Such other business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be 

received as a matter of urgency by reason of special circumstances to be 
specified in the minutes. 
 



 

MINUTES OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
HELD ON 

 
28 November 2017 7.30  - 8.39 pm 
 
 
PRESENT 
 
Committee Members 
Councillor Bob Davis (Chair) 
Councillor David Carter (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Simon Carter 
Councillor Joel Charles 
Councillor Tony Edwards 
Councillor Stefan Mullard 
Councillor Lanie Shears 

 
 

Officers 
Simon Freeman, Head of Finance 
Viv Hales, Sheltered Housing Manager 
Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 
Jo Maskell, Governance Support Officer 

 
 
33. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None. 
 

34. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 10 October 
2017 are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.  

 
35. MATTERS ARISING  

 
None. 
 

36. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 
None. 
 

37. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  
 
None. 
 

38. RESPONSES OF THE CABINET TO REPORTS OF THE SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  
 
None.  

Public Document Pack

3

Agenda Item 3



39. REVIEW OF SHELTERED HOUSING (PHASE 2) - FINAL REPORT  
 
Following the completion of Phase 1 of the review on sheltered housing, 
the Committee received the final report on Phase 2, which was comprised 
of a longer term service appraisal and included a five year financial plan.  
A summary of the review, which supported the presentation, was tabled. 
 
The Committee considered the various proposals which aimed to provide 
an effective framework for balancing the Council’s priorities as a landlord, 
whilst subject to reducing resources from the General Fund and Housing 
Revenue Account.  
 
It was noted that there were no details yet about a new funding proposal 
announced by the Government, which had been categorised as Supported 
Housing and was due to be implemented in April 2020.  Members of the 
Committee were keen to learn more about this initiative and to be given an 
opportunity to feed into any formal consultation process.   
 
Officers were thanked for this comprehensive report. 
 

RESOLVED that it be recommended to the Cabinet that the 
proposals detailed in paragraphs 15 to 31 of the report, be adopted.  

 
40. REVIEW OF UNIVERSAL CREDIT IN HARLOW - SCOPING REPORT  

 
The Committee received a scoping report for a review on the implications 
arising from the recent introduction of Universal Credits in Harlow. 
 
The methods for gathering evidence were discussed and likely 
organisations for inclusion in the process suggested, as well as a protocol 
for interviewing local claimants due to the sensitivities involved. 
 
Whilst the Committee recognised the value of interviewing local claimants, 
in order to get a true picture from as wide a cross-section of witnesses as 
possible, it was aware that care needed to be taken in the approach to 
these interviews.  It was agreed that a set of previously agreed questions 
should be used for this process and identical questions posed to all 
claimants. 
 

RESOLVED that  
 
(a) the terms of reference and the scope for the review, as set out in 

the report, be agreed subject to the deletion of ‘and therefore 
cannot take enact any findings or recommendations resulting 
from the review’ from the second paragraph of 
‘Barriers/dangers/risk’ row of the table; 

 
(b) agreement on a set of interview questions to be posed to 

claimants, be sought from members of the Committee, prior to 
the interviews.  

4



 
41. WORK PLAN  

 
The Committee received a report summarising its work plan for 2017/18 
and agreed to add a review on social mobility. 
 
Members of the Committee suggested a review of social mobility within 
Harlow, in order to enhance and optimise life chances for young people in 
the town.    
 

RESOLVED that  
 
(a) the work plan is noted; 

 
(b) a review of social mobility be added to the work plan. 

 
42. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  

 
None. 
 

43. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

5



 

 

REPORT TO: SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

DATE: 6 FEBRUARY 2018 
 

TITLE: REVIEW OF SPORT IN HARLOW – 
INTERIM REPORT 
 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

JANE GREER, HEAD OF COMMUNITY 
WELLBEING (01279) 446406 
 

CONTRIBUTING 
OFFICERS:  

MAUREEN PEARMAN, COMMUNITY, 
LEISURE AND CULTURAL SERVICES 
MANAGER (01279) 446095 
 
CHRIS PURVIS, SPORTS AND LEISURE 
POLICY AND DEVELOPMENT OFFICER 
(01279) 446435 

 
 
RECOMMENDED that: 
 
A  The Committee notes the progress of the review so far. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
1.  On 5 September 2017, the Scrutiny Committee agreed to conduct a review of 

sport in Harlow.  
 

2.  The following progress has been made against the review’s Terms of 
Reference: 
 

a) Desktop research into current definitions for sport and physical activity. 
 

b) Analysis of latest sport and physical activity participation rates. 
 

c) Desktop research into the benefits of participation in sport and 
physical activity. 
 

d) Desktop research into the economic impact of Sport and Physical 
Activity has in Harlow has been completed.   
  

e) Contact details for sports and physical activity clubs and organisations 
currently operating in Harlow have been collated.  
 

f) Two questionnaires have been developed.  One questionnaire aims to 
find out more about the sport and physical activity habits of residents. 

6

Agenda Item 8



 

 

One questionnaire aims to find out more about the sports clubs and 
organisations currently operating in Harlow and how engagement with 
the Active Harlow Network can be improved. 
 

g) Decathlon have match funded gift cards to enable survey respondents 
to be entered into a free prize draw should they voluntarily consent to 
provide contact details for the purpose of the draw only. 

 
h) The Active Essex Get Active Finder is included on the Livewell 

website.  
 

i) Active Harlow accesses funding from Active Essex and other sources 
when available to commission a range of projects targeting inequality 
of participation. In 2017/18 the partnership has commissioned projects 
targeting females as well as older residents and residents on a low 
income.  
 

ISSUES/PROPOSALS 
 

3.  For the purposes of this review and the Council’s approach to sport and 
physical activity the definitions provided by the European Sports Charter and 
World Health Organisation will be used to give context.  
 

4.  The European Sports Charter defines ‘Sport’ as being all forms of physical 
activity which, through casual or organised participation, aim at expressing or 
improving physical fitness and mental well-being, forming social relationships 
or obtaining results in competition at all levels. 
 

5.  The World Health Organisation (WHO) defines physical activity as any bodily 
movement produced by skeletal muscles that requires energy expenditure – 
including activities undertaken while working, playing, carrying out household 
chores, travelling, and engaging in recreational pursuits. 
 

6.  Harlow has lower than average levels of physical activity with: 
 

a) 52 percent of adults (16+) reporting to undertake 150 minutes of 
moderate intensity physical activity per week compared to the national 
average of 57 percent;  
 

b) 33.6 percent of adults (14+) participate in sport at least once a week 
compared to the national average of 37 percent;  
 

c) 21.5 percent of adults (16+) take part in sport and active recreation 
three times per week compared to the national average of 23.7 
percent; and 
 

7



 

 

d) 33.6 percent of adults (14+) participate in sport at least once a week 
compared to the national average of 37 percent. 

 
7.  There is gender inequality in terms of participation in sport and physical 

activity in Harlow with:  
 

a) 39.4 percent of males (14+) participating in sport at least once per 
week compared to 28.3 percent of females; and  
 

b) 23.8 percent of males (16+) participating in sport three times per week 
to 19.4 percent of females. 

 
8.  There are higher levels of inactivity with 33.6 percent of adults (16+) being 

inactive compared to a national average of 27.7 percent. 
 

9.  The estimated health costs of inactivity within Harlow is £1.5 million. It is 
estimated that 40 deaths per year would be prevented if 75 percent of 
Harlow’s population aged 40 – 79 were engaged in the recommended levels 
of physical activity. 
 

10.  Cambridge University published a study that stated inactivity is twice as 
significant an indicator of premature mortality than Body Mass Index, 
irrespective of weight. 
 

11.  Sport and physical activity are known to help manage and or prevent over 20 
long term conditions and illnesses. These include but are not limited to: 
 

a) Reduced risk of dementia by up to 30 percent; 
 

b) Reduced risk of cardiovascular disease by up to 35 percent; 
 

c) Reduced risk of Type 2 diabetes by up to 40 percent; 
 

d) Reduced risk of hip fracture by up to 68 percent; 
 

e) Reduced risk of depression by up to 30 percent; 
 

f) Reduced risk of colon cancer by up to 30 percent; 
 

g) Reduced risk of breast cancer by up to 20 percent; and 
 

h) Reduced risk of all mortality by 30 percent. 
 

12.  Participation in organised sport by belonging to a club, receiving tuition or 
taking part competitively is lower than average in Harlow as 24.3 percent of 
residents access sport this way compared to 34.7 percent nationally.   

8



 

 

13.  Satisfaction with sporting provision is marginally lower than the national 
average with 62.2 percent of residents are satisfied with sporting provision in 
Harlow compared to 62.7 percent nationally.  
 

14.  The value of sport to Harlow’s economy is £33 million in gross value added 
(wages and operating profit). This is made up of £22.1 million from people 
participating in sport and £10.9 million from wider non-participation interests 
and 916 jobs.   
 

15.  Active Harlow’s targeted interventions typically attract annual throughput of 
approximately 2,000 attendances and predominantly focus on populations 
where inequalities are generally believed to exist. In 2017/18 the partnership 
commissioned the This Girl Can Festival to encourage more female residents 
to participate in sport and physical activity. It also commissioned three 
disability projects (Boccia, wheelchair basketball and wheelchair athletics). 
 

16.  It also commissioned Walking Football and has previously commissioned 
Walking Rugby and Walking Netball for older residents along with a 
programme of Health Walks. The Health Walks programme is about to 
expand and include more family orientated options. 
 

17.  Active Harlow commissioned The Big Harlow Bike Ride to encourage 
residents to be active outdoors and think about how they can build physical 
activity into their daily routines through the use of active travel. 
 

18.  Sub Groups of the Harlow Health and Wellbeing Partnership Board have 
commissioned projects aimed at increasing physical activity levels of young 
people and female residents. 
 

19.  National level data has highlighted that there are inequalities to participation 
but less is known about the issues and barriers to participation. This is why 
further work is needed to undertake surveys with residents, clubs and 
organisations delivering opportunities for people to be physically active in 
Harlow.  
 

20.  The survey results help provide an understanding of what the barriers to 
participation are and what can be done to remove them.  This will help inform 
the work and future commissioning of both Active Harlow and the Health and 
Wellbeing Board. The surveys started on 22 January and are due to close on 
19 February. This will allow for the results to be analysed and reported to the 
March Scrutiny Committee.  
 

21.  The results of the surveys will help inform the direction of Active Harlow and 
enable action plans to be developed that will help to remove some of the 
identified barriers to participation.  
 

9



 

 

22.  Work is planned to raise the awareness of the Get Active Finder. This should 
increase its use by Harlow organisations and increase traffic to the tool from 
Harlow residents. 

 
 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
Place (Includes Sustainability) 

As contained within the report 

Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Place 

 

Finance (Includes ICT) 
None specific. 

Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance  

 
Housing 

As contained within the report. 

Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 

 
Community Wellbeing (Includes Equalities and Social Inclusion) 

The review of sport will help inform the work of the health and wellbeing board 
and its sub-groups. It will provide direction to Active Harlow and highlight some of 
the inequalities that could potentially be addressed. 
Author: Jane Greer, Head of Community Wellbeing 

 
Governance (Includes HR) 
The survey for the residents will be anonymous therefore only those that wish to 
enter the prize draw will need to supply contact details. Both residents and 
organisations are fully informed of their rights under data protection legislation not 
to consent to the gathering of data.  For how long their data will be kept and the 
reason for the processing.   
 
The Council in ensuring that this information is given is able to show that it is 
compliant with the data protection legislation, thus mitigating the risk of challenge 
and of acting unlawfully. 
Author: Amanda Julian, Legal Services Manager, on behalf of Brian Keane, 
Acting Managing Director 
 

 
Appendices 
 
None. 
 
Background Papers 
 
UK Chief medical Officer physical activity benefits for adults and older adults 

10



 

 

UK Chief medical Officer physical activity benefits for children and young people 
(5-18 years). 
UK Chief medical Officer  physical activity benefits for early years (birth to 5 
years) 
Active Essex Changing 1 Million Lives Strategy 
The European Sports Charter 
World Health Organisation Physical Activity Factsheet February 2017 
Public Health England: Health matters, getting every adult active every day. 
Department for Digital, Culture, Media & Sport, Sporting Future: A New Strategy 
for an Active Nation 
HM Government, Sporting Future: First Annual Report 
Harlow Council: Working Together for Harlow Corporate Plan 2017/18 - 2019/20 
http://www.ukactive.com/downloads/managed/Physical_Activity_and_Health_-
_Final_Version.pdf 
Sport England: Partnering Local Government in Harlow. 
Local Sport Profile for Harlow 

  
Glossary of terms/abbreviations used 
 
None. 
 
 

11

http://www.ukactive.com/downloads/managed/Physical_Activity_and_Health_-_Final_Version.pdf
http://www.ukactive.com/downloads/managed/Physical_Activity_and_Health_-_Final_Version.pdf


REPORT TO: SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

DATE: 6 FEBRUARY 2018 
 

TITLE: REVIEW OF UNIVERSAL CREDIT IN 
HARLOW – AGREEMENT OF QUESTIONS 
FOR INTERVIEWS 
 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

SIMON FREEMAN, HEAD OF FINANCE 
(01279) 446228 

 
 
RECOMMENDED that: 
 
A The Committee agrees the draft questions attached as Appendix A to the 

report to be used for the interviews with Universal Credit claimants, 
representatives from the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) and other 
relevant organisations as part of the Committees review of Universal Credit in 
Harlow. 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
1.  At its meeting on 28 November 2017, the Committee agreed to conduct a 

review of Universal Credit (UC) in Harlow. As part of the Review’s terms of 
reference it was agreed that interviews would be conducted with UC 
claimants. 
 

ISSUES/PROPOSALS 

2.  The Committee asked that a set of questions was agreed prior to the 
interviews taking place. Therefore a draft set of questions (Appendix A) has 
been prepared for consideration. 
 

3.  It is expected that the interviews will take place at the meeting on Tuesday 13 
March. In addition to claimants and the DWP, the Citizens Advice Bureau and 
Razed Roof will also be asked to attend the interviews. The questions have 
been drafted on this basis.  
 

 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
Place (Includes Sustainability) 

None specific. 

Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Place 

 
 

12

Agenda Item 9



Finance (Includes ICT) 
None specific.  

Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance  

 
Housing 

Raised expectations as to the role of Housing as a Landlord in the Universal 
Credit process, which could lead to resource implications for any additional 
support/assistance that may be required. 
Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 

 
Community Wellbeing (Includes Equalities and Social Inclusion) 

None specific. 

Author: Jane Greer, Head of Community Wellbeing 

 
Governance (Includes HR) 
In order for the survey to be undertaken the full principles of the Data Protection 
legislation must be adhered to. Officers when collecting personal information 
including personal sensitive information must adhere to the processing principles 
in the Schedules to the current legislation, the principles of the General Data 
Protection Regulation [GDPR], and any guidance that has been published by the 
Information Commissioners Office. Failure to comply with data protection 
legislation and Regulations is likely to result in a breach of the fair processing 
principles. 
 
Prior to any interviews taking place the Council will need to ensure that those 
being interviewed are aware that they did not have to participate in the interview 
process. If they do wish to do so the Council will need to explain that the 
information will be anonymised and used for statistical and research purposes 
only.  
Author: Amanda Julian, Legal Services Manager, on behalf of Brian Keane, 
Acting Managing Director 
 

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Questions for Universal Credit Review 
 
Background Papers 
 
None. 
 
Glossary of terms/abbreviations used 
 
DWP – Department for Work and Pensions 
UC – Universal Credit 
 

13



Appendix A 

Scrutiny Committee – Universal Credit Review 

Questions for Claimants –  

1. When did you transfer to Universal Credit? 

2. How many weeks did you have to wait for your first Universal Credit Payment? 

3. Has switching to Universal credit caused you more or less financial problems? 

4. Has the transfer to Universal credit led to or is likely to lead to you falling behind with 

your rent payments? 

5. When you were going through the process of switching to Universal Credit-  

 What worked? 

 What didn’t work? 

 Was seeking help and advice easy for you to access or was it difficult to find 

support? 

 What could have been done better and how? 

 Is there anything that you feel Harlow Council could have done to assist you during 

this process? 

 How did the on line claim process work for you especially with reference to ease of 

use and accessibility? 

6. Are you aware that you can still claim for Council Tax Support from the Council? 

 
Questions to Organisations –  
 
For the DWP Representatives - 

1. What are the current numbers of Harlow people/households on UC? 

2. How many single people and families will be going on to UC and over what time scale? 

3. Are you able to provide a breakdown of claimants by housing tenure? 

4. What support is being offered to claimants and how are claimants made aware of it? 

5. How many and what percentage of claimants are requesting emergency loans or 

payments? 

Questions for all organisations -  

6. What evidence is there to suggest that the transfer to UC has -  

 Increased rent arrears 

14



 Created increased debt problems for claimants 

 Increased referrals to agencies such as the Food Bank / CAB 

 Led to more people to approach pay day loan type facilities to support 

themselves and their families? 

7. What impact is the introduction of UC having on the rental/housing market? 

8. How are the additional demands resulting from UC impacting on your organisations 

resources? 

9. Are there any requirements for the links between the agencies to be strengthened and 

if so in what way? 

10. Are that any areas in which you believe Harlow Council can provide additional 

assistance to help in managing the challenges of Universal Credit? 

 

15



Scrutiny Committee Work Plan 2017/18 

Title Tuesday 25 
July 2017 

 

Tuesday 5 
September 

2017 
 

Tuesday 10 
October 2017 

 

Tuesday 28 
November 

2017 
 

Tuesday 6 
February 2018 

 

Tuesday 13 
March 2018 

Review of Sheltered Housing  
(Phase 2) 
 

   Final Report   

Civic Pride and Education 
 

     Final Report 

Improving the Provision of 
Bus Services in Harlow 
 

     Interim Report 

Review of Sports in Harlow 
 

 Scoping Report   Interim Report Final Report 

Review of Road Safety and 
Improving the Safety of 
Young Drivers 
 

  Question and 
Answer Session 
with Essex 
Police 

   

Review of Landscaping 
Services Provided by HTS  
 

     Scoping Report 

Review of Church Langley 
Fund 
 

     Scoping Report 

Review of Universal Credit in 
Harlow 
 

   Scoping Report Agreement of 
Questions for 
Interviews 

Interviews with 
DWP and 
Claimants  

Transport Links in and out of 
Harlow Delayed pending the 

completion of the preparation of the 
Local Plan including transportation 
evidence and input by Essex 
County Council 

      

Review of Social Mobility 
 

      

 

16

A
genda Item

 10


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	8 Review of Sports in Harlow - Interim Report
	9 Review of Universal Credit in Harlow - Agreement of Questions for Interviews
	Appendix A - Questions for Universal Credit Review

	10 Work Plan

